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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Phillip Life Assurance

Public Company Limited and its subsidiary (‘the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the related consolidated statements
of comprehensive income, changes in owners’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Phillip Life Assurance Public
Company Limited for the same period.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Phillip Life Assurancé Public Company Limited and its subsidiary and of
Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2019, their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards. |

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of my report. | am independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as issued by the Federation of Accounting
Professions as relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and | have fulfiled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 2.1 to the financial statements, the sudden market volatilities with the fall of
interest rates and the capital market poses difficulties for financial institutions in the market place.
Adjustments are being made by companies to inject capital to meet prudential requirements as
stipuiated by the Office of the Insurance Commission (“the OIC"). The OIC has also temporarily
lowered the minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio ("CAR") from 140% to 120% as from 31 December
2019 to 31 December 2021 under the Risk-Based Capital 2 Framework.

The Company is no exception having to inject a total of Baht 1,150 million during the financial
year to meet the CAR’s requirement. During the second-half of 2019, the Company’s CAR was
lower than 140% twice. The Company applied its short-term pilan to rectify such event by several
increases in its capital which caused its CAR as at 31 December 2019 to strengthen to 159%
(based on management report, not yet audited by the Company's auditor). The Company plans to -
increase additional capital in 2020 to support the continuing situation of the persistent low interest
rate and execute its long-term plan by readjusting its product and investment strategies to lower
the risk charge and enhance a sustainable efficiency in its business operation.

The market circumstances indicate uncertainties, which are dependent upon the success in
achieving its capital increase plan and improving its operating performance. The major
shareholder has been very supportive of all past capital calls and has undertaken to provide more
capital if necessary to meet its growing policy commitments and regulatory capital requirements.
Furthermore, the major shareholder stated in its letter dated 18 March 2020 that it will provide
financial support to the Company to enable it to maintain the CAR of not lower than the minimum
requirement as stipulated by the OIC.

Accordingly, | do not express any qualified opinion in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements '

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
managément determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and usihg the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group’s or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue

an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part-of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional

Judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to
draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group’s to cease to continue as a going concern.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Lirnited
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. | am résponsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| am responsibie for the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report.

Rachada Yongsawadvanich
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4951

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 23 March 2020

A member firm of Ernst & Yeung Global Limited



Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
Statements of financial position
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018

(Unit: Baht)

Consoldated financial statements Separate financial statements

Note 31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2018

31 December 2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 365,763,405 236,188,519 360,621,159 231,189,608
FPremium receivables - net 7 130,946,720 94,898,717 130,946,120 94,888,717
Accrued investment income - net 11 73,595,320 85,912,306 73,595,320 65,912,306
Reinsurance assets 8 1,539,411 917,418 1,539,411 91 7,4_16
Reinsurance receivables 9 898,656 350,601 898,656 360,601
Investrnent assets
Investments in securities - net 10, 31 10,149,718,295 8,069,4582,1588 10,148,719,285 8,060,482,168
Loans - net 11 1,032,172,635 1,125,885,294 1,032,172,635 1,125,885,204
Investments in a subsidiary 12 - - 4,955,839 4,915,376
Premises and equipment - net 13 241,332,638 254,228,306 241,332,638 254,228.3b6
Ihtangible assels 14 13,860,529 16,684,069 13,860,529 16,684,069
Other assets - nat 15 40,623,029 £9,608,538 40,661,285 59,686,168

Total assets

12,050,451,938

9,924,165,934

12,050,302,887

©,924,160,028

The accompahymg notes are an integral part of the financia! statements.




Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited and its subsidiary

Statements of financial position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018

Consclidaied financial statements

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Note
Liabilities and owners' equity
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities ) 16
Reinsurance payabies 17
Employee benefit obligations 18
Deferred tax liabilities 19
Other liabilities 20
Total liabilities
Owners' equity
Share capital
Registered
960,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 6,25 sach
(2018: 640,000,000 ordinary shares of
Baht 6.25 each) 21
Issued and paid-up
685,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 6.25 each
(2018: 501,500,000 ordinary shares of
Baht .25 each) 21
Share subscription recegivable 22
Issued and paid-up
Share subscription receivable 22
Deficits )
Other component of owners' equity
Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale investments
- net of income taxes 10.4

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiary
Total owners' equity

Total fiabilities and owners' equity °

9,763,554,910

8,021,322,385

9,763,554,910

8,021,322,365

5,843,720 5,108,736 5,843,720 5,108,736
57,190,980 38,764,095 57,190,580 38,764,995
128,811,839 52,138,358 12‘8,911,839 52,138,358
289,356,131 233,634,768 289,213,034 233,634,767
10,244,857 ,650 8,350,969 222 10,244,714,553 8,350,989,221

6,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

6,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

3,134,375,000

4,284,375,000 3,134,375,000 4,284,375,000
{1,128,408) (1,128,408) {1,128,408) {1,128,4086)
4,263 246,594 3.,133,246,504 4,283,246,504 3,123,246,594
{71,089,769) (71,089,769) {71,089 769) (71,089,769}

(2,914,875,409)

(1,687,519,451)

{2,914,875,400)

(1,697,519,451)

508,306,918 208,553,433 508,308,918 208,653,433
1,805,588,334 1,573,190,807 1,806,588,334 1,973,190,807
5954 5,805 - -

1,805,594,288

1,673,196,712

1,805,588,334

1,573,180,807

12,050,451,938

8,924,165,934

12,050,302,887

9,924,160,028

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited and its subsidiary

Statements of comprehensive income

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

Profit or loss:
Revenues

Premium written

Less: Premium-ceded to reinsurers

Net premium written

Less: Uneamed premium reserves increase from prior year

Earned premium afier reinsurance
Net investment revenues

Gains (losses) on investments

Fair value losses

Share of profit {loss) from investment in a subsidiary under

aquity method
Other income
Total revenues

Expenses

Long-term life insurance policy reserves crease

from prior year

Unexpired risk reserves increased from prior year

Benefit payments under life policies and gross ciaims

Less: Benefit payments under life policies and
claims refundable from reinsurance

Commission and brokerage expenses

Qther underwriting expenses

QOperating expenses

Cther expenseé

Total expenses

Loss before income tax expenses
Income tax expenses

Loss for the years

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
Note 2018 2018 2019 2018
2,347,629,761 1,434,526,454 2,347,629,761 1,434,526,454
(7.440,866) (10,153,372} (7.440,566) (10.153,372)
2,340,188,185 1,424,373,082 2‘346,189.195 1,424,373,082
(233,088,769) (25,468,300) (233,088,769) (25,468,300)
2,107,100,426 1,398,904,782 2,107,100,426 1,398,904,782
24 368,303,575 380,914 751 368,284,512 380,914,751
{43,365,376) 18,542,643 (43,366,376) 13,542,643
(3.664,230) (22,220,458} {3,664,230) (22,220,458)
. - 40,462 (52,298)
1,094,710 756,260 978,646 796,260
2,429,468,105 1,771,937,678 2,429,373,440 1,771,685,680
1,274,457,720 193,329,522 1.274,457,720 193,329,522
16.2 32,654,152 - 32,654,152 -
1,321,851,842 788,524,700 1,321,851,842 788,524,700
(1,725,218) 6,610,765 {1,725,9186) 6,610,765
595,756,432 412,876,451 595,722,426 412,876,451
23,337,906 14,288,360 23,337 908 14,286,360
25 394,266,638 302,622,893 384,226,028 302,470,532
104,108 65,855,587 . 104,108 65,855,597
26 3,640,722,880 1,784,006,288 3,640,628,264 1,783,953,927
(1,211,254,775) (12,068,310) {1,211,254,824) (12,088 247)
18.2 (1,835,110) - {1,835,110) -
{1,213,089,885) (12,068,310} (1,213,089,934) (12,068,247)
5
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Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
Statements of comprehensive income (Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

Other compreilwnsive income (loss):
Items to be recognised in profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Gains {losses) on valuation of available-for-sale investments
Add (Less}: Income taxes
ltems to be recognised in profit or Ioss in subsequent
periods - net of income taxes
lterms not to be recognised in profit or Idss in subsequent periods:
Actuarial losses
Total iters not ta be recognised in profit or loss in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the years

Total comprehensive loss for the years

Loss for the periods attributable to:
Thé Company's shareholders

Nori-controtling interests of the subsidiary

Total comprehensive loss for the periods attributable to:
The Company's shareholders

Nor-centrolling interests of the subsidiary
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Loss for the years

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financizl statements.

{Unit: Baht)
Consolidated financial statemants Separate financial statements
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
374,691 858 (491,767 ,287) 374,691,856 (491,767 287)
19.2 (74,938,371) 98,353,457 (74,938,371) 98,353,457
28 299,753,485 {393,413,830) 299,753,485 (393,413,830)
(4,266,024) - (4,266,024) -
28 (4,268,024) - {4,266,024) -
295,487,461 (393,413,830) 255,487 461 (393,413,830)
(917,602,424) [405,482,140) (917,802,473) (405,482,077)
{1,213,089,934) (12,088,247) {1,213,089 934) {12,068,247)
49 {83)
(1,213,089,885) (12,068,310)
(917,602,473) (405,482,077) {917,802,473) (405,482 ,077)
29 (83}
(917,602,424} (405,482,140)
20 .
{2 23) {0.02) (2.23) (0.02)
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Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited and its subsidiary
Statements of cash flows

For the years'ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

Consolidated financial staterments

(Unit: Baht)

Separate financial statements

Note 2019 2018 2019 2018

Cash flows from {used in} operating activities
Gross premium from direct insurance 2.312,028,486 1,411,814,213 2,312,028,486 411,814,213
Cash paid from reinsurance (7,699,309) (8,907,578) (7,699,309) (8,907,578)
Interest income 270,001,546 242 265,463 269,082,484 242,265,483
Dividend income 98,698,134 163,336,399 99,698,134 163,336,399
Other income 1,070,147 772,150 954,083 f?2,1 50
Benefit payments under life palicies énd gross claims

from direct insurance (1,118,273,937) (780,040,321) (1,118,273,937) (780,040,321)
Commission and brokerage expenses on direct insurance {560,674,390) {346,932,657) (560,640,384) {345,932 657)
Other underwriting expenses {17,850,864) (13,619,268) (17,850,864) {13,619,268)
Operating expenses (314,574,425) (257,413,371) (314.616,638) (257,413,371)
Other expenses (3,230 (65,849,662) {3,230) (65,849,662)
Investments in securities (1,756,430,454) (894,264,682) (1,756,430,454) (894,264,682)
Loans 103,053,243 19,546,435 103,053,243 19,546,435
Net cash used in operating activities (989,655,053) {529,202,879) (989,798,386) (529,292,879)
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Building and equipment (28,363,946) (174,523,778) (28,363,946) {174,523,778)
Intangible assets (2,408,115) (15,480,130) (2,406,115) {15,460,130)
Net cash used in investing activities (30,770,061) (189,983,908} (30,770,061} (189,983,908)
Cash flows from {used in) financial activities
Proceeds from issuance of additional ordinary shares 21 1,150,000,000 300,000,000 1,150,000,000 300,000,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,150,000,000 300,000,000 1,150,000,000 300,000,000
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 129,574,886 {419,276,787) 129,431,553 (419,276,787)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the years 236,188,519 665,465,306 231,189,606 650,466,393
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the years 365,763,405 236,188,519 360,621,159 231 ,1'89,606

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018

1.

2.1

Corporate information

Phillip Life Assurance Public Company Limited (the “Company”) was established as a
limited company under Thai laws and domiciled in Thailand whereby on 13 March 2014, the
Company registefed the change of its status to be a public company. As at 31 December
2019 and 2018, its major shareholder is Phillip Life Company Limited, which was
incorporated in Singapore, holding 99.70% and 98.87%, respectively, of the issued and
paid-up share capital of the Company.

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of life insurance services. The
registered office of the Company is located at No. 849, Vorawat Building, Silom Road,
Silom Sub-district, Bangrak District, Bangkok. As of 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Company had altogether 27 branches, and 27 branches, respectively.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
Going concern assumption

The sudden market volatilities with the fall of interest rates and the capital market poses

difficulties for financial institutions in the market place. Adjustments are being made by
companies to inject capital to meet prudential requirements as stipulated by the Office of
the Insurance Commission (“the OIC”). The OIC has also temporarily {owered the minimum
Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR”) from 140% to 120% as from 31 December 2019 to 31
December 2021 under the Risk-Based Capital 2 Framework.

The Company is no exception having to inject a total of Baht 1,150 million during the
financial year to meet the CAR's requirement. During the second-half of 2019, the |
Company's CAR was lower than 140% twice. The Company applied its short-term plan to
rectify such event by several increases in its capital which caused its CAR as at 31
December 2019 to strengthen to 159% (based on management report, not yet audited. by
the Company's auditor). The Company plans to increase additional capital in 2020 to
support the continuing situation of the persistent fow interest rate and execute.its long-term -
plan by readjusting its product and investment strategies to lower the risk charge and
enhance a sustainable efficiency in its business operation.

The major shareholder has been very supportive of all past capital calls and has undertaken
to provide more capital if necessary to meet its growing policy commitments and regulatory ‘
capital requirements. Furthermore, the major shareholder stated in its letter dated 18 March
2020 that it will provide financial support to the Company to enable it to maintain the CAR of
not lower than the minimum requirement as stipulated by the OIC.



2.2

2.3

With Such short-term and long-term plans, the Company’s management believes that the
Company would be able to operate an on-going business and these financial statements
were therefore prepared under the going concern assumptions, with assets and liabilities
carried on the basis that the Company will be able to realise assets and settle liabilities in
the normal course of business.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards enunciated under the Accounting Profession Act B.E. 2547, and in accordance ‘
with Thai accounting practices related to life insurance and the accounting and reporting
guidelines prescribed by the Office of Insurance Commission (“OIC™), and their presentation
has been in accordance with the format of financial statements specified in the Notification
of the OIC regarding criteria, procedures, terms and conditions for preparation and
submission of financial statements and operating performance reports of life insurance
companies dated 4 March 2016. '

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where
otherwise disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements regarding a summary of significant
accounting policies.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial étatements of
the Company. The financial statements in English tanguage have been translated from the
financial statements in Thai language.

Basis of consolidation

(a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Phillip Life
Assurance Public Company Limited (‘the Company”) and the following subsidiary -
(collectively called “the Group™).

Country of
Company's name Nature of business incorporation Percentage of shareholding
31 December 2012 31 December 2018
(Percent) (Percent)
Phillip Insurance Broker  Non-life insurance broker Thailand 99.88 99.88

" Company Limited

(b) Subsidiary is fully consolidated, being the date on which the Company obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

(c) The financial statements of the subsidiary is prepared using the same significant
~accounting policies as the Company.

(d) Material balances and transactions between the Group have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

(e) Non-controliing interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the
subsidiary that are not held by the Company and are presented separately in the
consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.



2.4 Separate financial statements

3.1

The Company has prepared its separate financial statements, which have presented

investment in a subsidiary under the equity method.
New financial reporting standard

Fi_nancial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

During the year, the Group adopted the revised (revised 2018) and new financial reporting
standards and interpretations which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1
January 2019. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards‘clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for
users of the standards. The adoption of these financial reporting standards does not have
any significant impact on the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial statements. However,

the new standard involves changes to key principles, which are summarised below:
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

TFRS 15 supersedes the following accounting standards together with related

Interpretations.

TAS 11 (revised 2017)  Construction contracts

TAS 18 (revised 2017) Revenue

TSIC 31 (revised 2017)  Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services
TFRIC 13 (revised 2017) Customer Loyalty Programmes

TFRIC 15 (revised 2017) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

TFRIC 18 (revised 2017) Transfers of Assets from Customers

Entities are to apply this standard to all contracts with customers unless those contracts fall
within the scope of other standards. The standard establishes a five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers, with revenue being recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange -
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when

applying each step of the model.

This standard does not have any significant impact on these financial statements.



3.2

TFRS 4 (revised 2018) Insurance Contracts

This standard provides an additional option to insurers that meet certain criteria stipulated in
the standard, whereby they can be temporarily exempted from adoption of certain measures
under TFRS 9 Financial Instruments and TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which
applicable for the financial reporting period beginning in or after 1 January 2020, and can
instead adopt the Thai Accounting Guidance applicable for insurance business related to
financial instruments and disclosures for the financial reporting period beginning before

1 January 2022 or before the eifective date of TFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (when issued).
This standard does not have any significant impact on these financial staiements.

Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on
or after 1 January 2020

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of new and revised financial
reporting standards and interpretations, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after 1 January 2020. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the
corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes
directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance for
users of the standards except the foliowing new standards which involve changes to key

principles, which are summarised below.
Financial reporting standards related to financial instruments

A set of TFRSs related to financial instruments consists of five accounting standards and

interpretations, as follows:

Financial reporting standards:
TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Accounting standard:

. TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:
TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments



These TFRSs related to financial instruments make stipulations relating to the classification
of financial instruments and their measurement at fair value or amortised cost (taking into
account the type_ of instrument, the characteristics of the contractual cash flows and the
Company’s business model), calculation of impairment using the expected credit loss
method, and hedge accounting. These inciude stipulations regarding the presentation and
disclosure of financial instruments. When the TFRSs related to financial instruments are

effective, some accounting standards, interpretations and guidance which are currently |

effective will be cancelled.

Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures applicable

to insurance business

Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures applicable to
insurance business was issued to comply with TFRS 4 (revised 2019) Insurance contracts,
which allows insurers who meet certain criteria stipulated in TFRS 4 to delay adoption of -
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments and TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which are
applicabie for the financial reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020, and to
adopt the Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and disclosures

applicable to insurance business instead.

This accounting guidance has some differences from TFRS 9, with the significant

differences being described as below.

- Classification and measurement of financial assets: These are to be classified as trading '
securities, available-for-sale securities, held to maturity debt securities, and loans and
receivables, with no requirement to take into account the assessment of the Company's

business moedel and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows.

- Loss on impairment, gain or loss on derecognition, and gain and loss on fair value

hedges for available-for-sale equity securities items are to be recognised in profit or oss.

- . The embedded derivatives in financial assets that are hybrid contracts are to be

separated from host contract if they meet all criteria for separation.

In addition, the accounting guidance has certain differences from TFRS 7 with respect to

disclosures.



According to the Company’s statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
Company had fiabilities in connection of insurance services under the scope of TFRS4:
Insurance Contracts of more than 90% of the carrying value of total liabilities, which allow
the Company to adopt the Thai Accounting Guidance related to financial instruments and
disclosures applicable for insurance business instead of TFRS 9: Financial Instruments and
TFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures, which are effective for financial reporting
beginning on or after 1 January 2020, and the Company management has already
considered to adopt such Thai Accounting Guidance and expected that adoption of such
guidance will have impacts to the Company's financial statements as below.

The Company’s management expects the adoption of this Thai Accounting Guidance to

result in the financial statement in important matters as following.

- Classification and measurement of investments in non-listed equity securities (General

investments)

The Company is to measure the investments in non-listed equity securities, which are
previously measured at cost less allowance for impairment (if any), at fair value through

profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.
- Recognition of credit losses

The Company is to recognise an allowance for expected credit losses on its financial

assets, and it is no longer necessary for a credit-impaired event to have occurred.

The Company's management is currently evaluating the impact of this Thai Accounting

Guidance on the financial statements in the year when it is adopted.
TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS 16 supersedes TAS 17 Leases together with related interpretations. The standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases, and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of

more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is low value.

Accounting by lessors under TFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from TAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles to
those used under TAS 17.

The Company plans to adopt TFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption
of which the cumulative effect is recognised as an adjustment to the retained earnings as at

1 January 2020, and the comparative information would not be restated.

The Company’s management is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on the
financial statements in the year when it is adopied.



4.1

Summary of significant accounting policies
Product classification

The Company classifies an insurance contract and a reinsurance contract based on the
nature of an insurance contract. Insurance contracts are those contracts where the insurer .
has accepted significant insurance risk from another party (the palicyholder) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event)
adversely affects the policyholder. To determine whether a significant insurance risk has
been accepted, the insurer compares the benefits payable after an insured event with the
benefits payable if the insured event does not occur. If the above criteria are not met, the
Company classifies the insurance contract as an investment contract. An investment
contract is the contract that has the legal form of an insurance contract and transfers
financial risk to the insurer, but not a significant level of insurance risk. Financial risk is, for .

example, interest rate risk, exchange rate risk, or price risk.

The Company classifies contracts based on an assessment of a significant level of the
insurance risk at an inception of a contract on a contract-by-contract basis. Once a contract
is classified as an insurance contract, it will continue to be an insurance contract until its
rights and obligations are terminated or expire. If any contract is classified as an investment
contract at an inception of the contract, it can later be reclassified to be an insurance

contract if the insurance risk becomes significant.

Insurance and investment contracts may contain a feature of either with or without a
discretionary participation feature (“DPF”"). DPF is a contractual right to receive, as a
supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that are likely to be a significant
pdrtion of the total contractual benefits, the amount or timing of which is contractually at the -
discretion of the ihsurance contract issuer, with the benefits based on the performance of a
specified pool of contracts, or realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a specified
pool of assets held by the issuer, or the profit or loss of a company, a fund or other entity

thét issues the contract.



4.2 Revenue recognition

(@)

(b)

() -

Premium written

For the first year policies, premium written after net of premium ceded and refund, is
recognised as revenue on the effective date of the insurance policies. For renewal
policies, it is recognised as revenue when the premium is due and the policy is still in

force at the end of reporting periods.
Net investment revenue

Net investment revenue are investment revenues net of investment expenses.

Investment expenses consist of management fee and relevant bank charges.

Investment revenues consist of interest and dividend income.

Interest income

Interest income on investments is recognised as revenue on an accrual basis based
on the effective interest rate. Interest income on loans is recognised as revenue over
the term of the loans based on the amount of outstanding principal. No accrual is
made for loans with interest default over six continuous months. Intereét income on

deposits is recognised as revenue over the term of deposits on an accrual basis.

Dividend income

Dividends on investments are recognised as revenues when the right to receive the

dividends is established.
Gains (losses) on investments

Gains or losses on investments are recognised as revenues or expenses on the

transaction dates.



4.3 Expense recognition

4.4

(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

Premium ceded to reinsurers

Premium ceded to reinsurers recognised as expenses when the insurance risk is -

transferred to ancther reinsurer,
Benefit payments under life policies

Benefit payments under life policies are recorded when notices of claims have been

received or when benefits are due in accordance with conditions in policies.
Gross claims

Gross claims consist of insurance claims and losses adjustment expenses for
incurred claims whether reported or not, which represent the claim amount and
related expenses, and loss adjustments of the current and prior years incurred during

the years, and are deducted by relevant claims refundable from reinsurers.

Gross claims are recognised upon the receipt of the claims advice from the insured,
based on the claims notified by the insured and estimates made by the Company’s
management. The maximum value of claims estimated is not to exceed the sum _

insured under the relevant policy.

Commission and brokerage expenses

Commissions and brokerages are expended when incurred.
Other underwriting and operating expenses

Other underwriting and operating expenses are recognised as expenses on an

accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at bank, and all highly liquid

investments with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal

restrictions.



4.5

4.6

4.7

Premium receivables

Premium receivables are stated at the net realisable value. The Company sets up an
allowance for doubtful accounts based on the estimated loss that may incur in collection of
the premium receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experience and a

review of current status of the premium receivables as at the end of the reporting periods.

For ordinary policies, the grace period is 45 days after the due date. In case of policies
having overdue periods after the grace period allowed and their cash value being in excess
of overdue premium receivables, such overdue premium receivables will be settled under .

the conditions of the automatic policy loans.
Reinsurance assets

Reinsurance assets are stated at the amounts of insurance reserves refundable from -
reinsurers, which consist of (a) loss reserves and (b) unearned premium reserves that are
estimated based on related reinsurance contracts in accordance with insurance reserve

calculation law.

-The Company sets up an allowance for impairment, of reinsurance assets based on losses

that may be incurred due to irrecoverable, taking into account collection experience, aged of
balance, and the status of receivables from reinsurers as at the end of the reporting periods.
Increase (decrease) in an allowance for impairment is recorded as an increase (a decrease) -

fo expenses during the years in profit or loss.
Reinsurance receivables and payables
(a) Reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance receivables are stated at the outstanding balances of amounts due from

reinsurers net of allowance for doubtful accounts (if any).

Amounts due from reinsurers consist of accrued commission and brokerage income,
claims and various other items receivable from reinsurers, excluding reinsurance
premium receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company records
allowance for doubtful accounts for the estimated losses that may be incurred due to
inability to make collection, taking into account collection experience and the status of

receivables from reinsurers as at the end of the reporting periods.
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4.8

(b) Reinsurance payables

Reinsurance payables are stated at the outstanding balances of payables due to
reinsurers,

Reinsurance payables consist of reinsurance premiums payable and other items

payable to reinsurers, excluding accruals and reserves relating to ¢laims.

The Company presents net of reinsurance receivable and payable of the' same entity

(amounts due from or to reinsurers) when the following criteria for offsetting are met.

(1) The Company has a legal right to offset amounts presented in the statements of
financial position, and '

(2} The Company intends to receive or pay the net amount recognised in the statements

of financial position, or to realise the asset at the same time as it pays the liability.

Investment assets
(@) Investments in securities

The Company measures its investments in securities according to investment

classification as follows:

Investments held for trading are stated at fair value. Change in the fair value of these

investments are recorded in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
these investments are recorded in other comprehensive income, and will be recorded

in profit or loss when the investments are disposed of.

Held-to-matﬁrity investments are recorded at amortised cost. The premium/discount on
debt securities is amortised/accreted by the effective rate method with the
amortised/accreted amount presented as an adjustment to the interest income. The
investments in debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity debt securities when

the Company has the positive intention and abilities to hold them to maturity.

Investments in non-marketable securities, which the Company classifies as general

investments, are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment (if any).

11



(b)

(c)

The fair value of marketable securities is based on the tatest bid price of the last
working day of the years as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The fair value
of debt instruments is determined based on the yield rates quoted by the Thai Bond
Market Association. The fair value of investments units is determined from their net

asset value.

In the event the Company reclassifies an investment from one type to another, such
investment will be readjusted to its fair value as at the reclassification date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the investment and the fair value on the -
date of reclassification is recorded in profit or loss or recorded as revaluation surplus or
deficit on investments in owners’ equity, depending on the type of investment that is
reclassified.

Purchase and sales of investments are recorded on the trading dates.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceed and the
cost of investment is recognised as revenue or expense in profit or loss. The Company

uses the weighted average method for computation of the cost of investment.
Loans

Loans are stated at net realisable value. The Company sets up an allowance for -
doubtful accounts based on the estimated loss that may incur in collection of
receivables, on the basis of analysis of payment histories, future expectations of
customer payments, the aging of the amount receivable and appraisal value of the
underlying collateral. The increase (decrease) in allowance for doubtful accounts is -

recognised as expense in profit or [oss.
Investment in a subsidiary

Investments in a subsidiary as presented in the financial statements, in which the
equity method is applied, is recorded initially at cost and adjusted to refiect the
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s operating results and is deducted by dividend

income.

12



4.9

4.10

Premises and equipment and depreciation

Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for impairment (if any).

Depreciation of buildings and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs on the

straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives.

Buildings - 20 years
Building improvements - Syears
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - Syears
Computers ' - 5years
Vehicles - Syears

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss and no depreciation is provided on land and .

assets in progress.

An item of premises and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal

of an asset is included in profit or loss from operation when the asset is derecognised.
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of .
the premises and equipment and intangible assets whenever events of changes in
circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset's fair

value less costs to sell and its value in use, is iess than the carrying amount.

[n the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment iosses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the
asset's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of
the asset aftributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the

asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

13



4.11 Insurance contract liabilities

(a)

(b}

(c)

Long-term life insurance policy reserves

Long-term life insurance policy reserves represent the accumulated total liability for

.policies in force as at the end of the reporting periods. The Company calculates these

reserves, using an actuarial method as prescribed by the OIC in its 2015 Notification
regarding determination of types of capital, together with the guidelines, procedures .
and conditions for calculating capital of life insurance companies, which indicates that
reserves under long-term policies are determined using the gross premium valuation
(“GPV") method as referred to in the OIC’s 2011 Notification regarding valuation of
assets and liabilities of life insurance companies. Key assumptions used are lapse .
rates or surrender rates, seliing and administrative expenses, mortality and morbidity

rates, discount rates and non-guaranteed dividend rates, etc.
Loss reserves

Loss reserves consisted of outstanding claims and loss reserves. Qutstanding claims
are recorded at the amount to be actually paid. Loss reserves are provided upon
receipt of claim advices from the insured based on the claims notified by the insured
and estimates made by the Company’s management. The maximum value of claims

estimate is not exceeding the sum insured under the relevant policy.

Loss reserves are calculated using the actuarial method and are the best estimates of
claims expected to pay to the insured in the future for losses incurred on or before the -
reporting dates both reported and not yet reported to the Company and also include
loss adjustment expenses. If the then-calculated loss reserves are higher than the
amount already recognised in the accounts, such difference is recognised as incurred
but not yet reported (“IBNR”) loss reserves.

Premium reserves

As at the end of each reporting period, the Company compares the amounts of
unexpired risk reserves with unearned premium reserves, and if unexpired risk
reserves are higher than unearned premium reserves, the difference is recognised as

unexpired risk reserves in the financial statements.
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(d)

(a) Unearned premium reserves

Unearned premium reserves are set aside on net premium written at the daily

average basis over the coverage period of each policy.
(b} Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are the amounts set aside for claims, which may occur in
the future, of the in-force policies. Unexpired risk reserves are determined usi’ng
an actuarial method. The reserves are determined using the best estimates of -
the claims, which are expected to occur during the remaining coverage period,
with reference to its historical claim data.

However, the increase or decrease in unearned premium reserves from prior year is to '

be recognised in profit or loss.
Unpaid policy benefits

Unpaid policy benefits are recorded when notices of the claims are received or when -

conditions in the policy are met.

4.12 Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised

as expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is -
monthly contributed by employees and by the Company. The fund’s assets are held in
a separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as expenses

when incurred.

15



4.13

4.14

4.15

Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments they must make to -
employees Upon retirement under [abor law and other employee benefit plans. The
Company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan. In
addition, the Company also provides other long-term employee benefit plan, namely
long service awards, to its employee.

The obligations under the defined benefit plan and other tong-term employee benefit
plan are determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on

actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the defined benefit plan are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income or loss and directly charged against
retained earnings.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from other long-term employee benefit plan are

recognised immediately in profit and loss.
Provisions for liabilities

Provisions for liabilities are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the _

amount of the obligation.
Long-term leases

Leases of premises and equipment, which do not transfer substantially all the risks and -
rewards of ownership, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease terms.
Income taxes

Income tax expenses represent the sum of corporate income taxes currently payable and

deferred income taxes.
(a) Currentincome taxes

Current income taxes are provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid
to the taxation authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax

iegislation.

16



4.16

4.17

{b) Deferred income taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period,

using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting periods.

The Group recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while
they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax
losses brought forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be -
available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses brought

forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews and reduce the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

The Group records deferred taxes directly to owners’ equity if the taxes relate to items

that are recorded directly to owners’ equity.
Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controiled by, the

Group, whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Group.

They also include individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Group
that gives them significant influence over the Group, key management personnel, directors,

and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Group’s operations.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in
an orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the fneasurement
date. The Group applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure its assets and
liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards, except in case there is no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a .
quoted market price is not available, the Group measures fair value using valuation
technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and maximise the use of relevant
observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair

value.

17




5.1

5.2

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on -

categories of inpui to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1- Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or
indirectly

Level 3- Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows -

At the end of each reporting period, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the
reporting periods that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at
times requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters
that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and
disclosures, and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and

estimates are as follows:
Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial

- position that are not actively traded and for which quoted market prices are not readily

available, the management exercises judgement, using a variety of valuation techniques and
models. The .input to these models is taken from observable markets, and includes
consideration of credit risk (the Company and counterparty, both) liquidity, correlation and
longer-term volatility of financial instruments. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the fair value recognised in the statements of financial position and the fair value

reported in disclosres of fair value hierarchy.
Allowance for doubtful accounts/Allowance for impairment

in determining allowances for doubtful accounts and impairment on premium receivables,
reinsurance assets, reinsurance receivables and loans, the management needs to make
judgment and estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging

profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.
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5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Aliowance for impairment on investments in equity securities

The Company treats available-for-sale investments and general investments as impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is

“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment of the management.
Premises and equipment and depreciation

In determining depreciation of buildings and equipment, the management is required to
make estimates of the useful lives and residual values of the building and equipment, include
disused assets, and to review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any .

changes.

In addition, the management is required to review premises and equipment for impairment
on a periodical basis and record impairment losses in profit or loss when it is determined that
their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements.
regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the

review.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is .
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.

Loeng-term insurance policy reserves

Long-term insurahce policy reserves are life policy reserves, which are calculated using the
actuarial method based on the current assumptions or assumptions determined on the policy
inception dates, which reflect the best estimate at that time. The key assumptions used are
pdlicy surrender rates or tapse rates, selling and administrative expenses, mortaiity rates,
morbidity rates, dfscount rates, non-guaranteed dividend rates and so on. However, the use
of different assumptions could affect the amount of life policy reserves and adjustments to

the reserve may therefore be required in the future.
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5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Loss reserves

At each reporting period, the Company is required to estimate loss reserves taking into
account two parts. These are the claims incurred and already reported on or before the end
of reporting periods and the claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) by the end of the |
reporting periods. The estimation is made using the actuarial techniques and the key
assumptions used relate to historical experience, including the development of claims
estimates, paid and incurred losses, average costs per claim and claim numbers, etc.
Nevertheless, such estimates are forecasts of future outcomes, and actual claims cou[d‘
differ.

Unexpired risk reserves

Unexpired risk reserves are calculated using an actuarial method, based on the best
estimate of the claims expected to be paid over the remaining terms of the insurance.
Estimating the reserves require management to exercise judgment, with reference to

historical data and the best estimates available at the time.
Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations are determined based on actuarial techniques. Such
determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rates, future salary
increamental rates, mortality rates, staff turnover rates and so on. However, actual outcome

could differ from the estimates.
Litigation

The Company has contingent liabilities as a result of litigation. The Company’s management
has used judgment to assess of the results of the litigation and believes that losses incurred
wilt not exceed the recorded amount as at the end of reporting period. However, actual

outcome could differ from the estimates.
Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the -
management is required to use judgment regarding whether or not significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred to the Company, taking into

consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.
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6.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Deposits at banks with no fixed maturity date

Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Bahf)
Consolidated

financial statements

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
1,045 1,367 1,048 1,367

364,717 234,822 359,575 229,823

365,763 236,189 360,621 231,180

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, bank deposits in saving accounts carried interests

between 0.05 - 0.48 percent per annum and 0.05 - 0.66 percent per annum, respectively.

Premium receivables

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the outstanding balances of premium receivables,

classified by overdue periods, counted from the grace-period due dates, were as follows:

Not yet due

Not over 30 days

Over 31 days to 60 days
Over 61 days to 90 days
Overdue longer than 90 days
Total premium receivables

Less: Allowance for doubiful accounts

Premium receivables - net

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate

financial statements

Direct insurance

31 December

2019 2018

130,508 94 881
238 6

- 2

5 4

6,489 5,854
137,240 100,747
(6,294) (5,848)
130,946 94 899

For insurance policies with individuals, the grace periods are 30 - 60 days after the due
dates. For overdue insurance policies having a cash value greater than the amounis of

overdue premium receivables, the overdone premium receivables will be automatically

settied under the conditions of the automatic policy loans.
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Reinsurance assets

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, reinsurance assets consisted of reserves refundable
from reinsurers as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

31 December

2019 2018
Insurance reserve refundable from reinsurers
Unearned premium reserves 1,539 . 917
Reinsurance assets 1,839 917

Reinsurance receivables

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, reinsurance receivables consisted of the fdllowing:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

31 December

2019 2018

Amounts due from reinsurers 899 : 361

Reinsurance receivables 899 361

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balances of amounts due from reinsurers were

classified by overdue periods as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

31 December.

2019 2018

Not yet due 899 _ 361

Total amounts due from reinsurers 899 361
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10.

10.1 Classified by investment type

Investments in securities

Trading investments

Unit trust

Total

Add (less): Revaluation allowance

Trading investments - net

Available-for-sale investments

Government and state enterprise
securities

Private sector debt securities

Equity securities

Warrants

Total

Add {less): Revaluation allowance

from fair value measurement

from translation of foreign currencies

Total

Less: Allowance for impairment
Available-for-sale investments - net
General investment

Equity securities - ordinary shares
Total general investment

Investments in securities - net

{Unit: Thousand Baht})

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December

2019 2018
Cost/ Cost/

Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value
2,207,631 2,218,335 1,488,230 1,484,547
2,207,631 2,218,335 1,489,230 1,484,547

10,704 (4,683)
2,218,335 1,484,547
2,293,480 2,469,772 1,852,517 2,011,905
3,319,108 3,620,614 2,182,731 2,312,757
1,768,700 1,837,731 2,395,155 2,258,552
- - 9 7
7,381,268 7,928,117 6,430,412 6,583,221
635,384 260,692
(64,123) (45,447)
571,261 215,245
_@am) (62,438)
7,928,117 6,583,221
3,267 1,714
3,267 1,714
10,149,719 8,069,482

23




10.2 Classified by remaining periods of debt securities

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, investments in debt securities had the following
remaining periods to maturity.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Periods to maturity

1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total

Available-for-sale investments
Government and state enterprise securities
Government bonds - 237,075 1,466,076 1,703,151
State enterprise bonds - 340,172 - 340,172
Stafe enterprise debentures 60,162 89,975 120,000 250,137
Total 60,162 647,222 1,686,076 2,293,460
Add: Revaluation allowance 1,494 50,427 124,391 176,312
Total 61,656 697,649 1,710,467 2,469,772
Private sector securities
Debentures . 200,503 1,203,908 1,914,699 ' 3,319,108
Add: Revaluation allowance 3,350 74,177 223,979 301,508
Total 203,853 1,278,083 2,138,678 3,620,614
Total available-for-sale investments 265,509 1,975,732 3,849,145 6,090,386
Total investments in debt securities 265,509 1,975,732 3,849,145 6,090,386
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Periods to maturity

1 year 1-5years Over 5 years ' Total
Available-for-sale investments
Government and state enterprise securities
Government bonds 231,623 135,379 894,813 1,261,815
State enterprise bonds - 340,226 - 340,226
State enterprise debentures - 90,341 160,135 250,476
Total 231,623 565,948 1,054,948 1,852,517
Add: Revaluation allowance 3,670 33,011 122,707 159,388
Total ) 235,293 598,957 1,177,655 ' 2,011,905
Private sector securities
Debentures 30,000 1,122,347 1,030,384 2,182,731
Add: Revaluation allowance 451 62,599 66,976 130,028
Totai . 30,451 1,184,946 | 1,097,360 2,312,757
Total available-for-sale investments 265,744 1,783,903 2,275,015 4,324,662
Total investments in debt securities 265,744 1,783,903 2,275,015 4,324,662

10.3 Investments subject to restrictions

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had government and state enterprise
bonds and private debentures placed as securities as described in Note 31 to the financial

statements.
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10.4 Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale investments

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had movements in

revaluation surplus on available-for-sale investments as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and

separate financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018

Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale investments

- beginning of the years 260,692 752,459
Gains (losses) on revaluation of available-for-sale investments 288,680 (448,981)
(Gains) losses on sales of available-for-sale investments

during the years transferred to be recognised in profit or loss 86,012 (44,786)
Revaluation surplus on available-for-sale investments

- end of the years 635,384 260,692
Less: income taxes (127,077} (52,138)
Revaluation surplus on avéilable-for~sale investments

- net of income taxes 508,307 208,554

11. Loans and interest receivables

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balances of loans and interest receivables were

classified by overdue periods of principal and interest receivables as follows:

Consclidated and separate financial stalements

{Unit: Thousand Banl)

31 December 2019

Policy loans Mortgage loans Other loans Talal
Interest Interest Interest Inlerest
Qverdue pariods Principal receivablast Principal receivables'! Principal receivables™" Principal receivables!! Tolal

Not yet due . 517,398 15,771 52,891 1,380 140 570,429 17,181 587,580
Pasi dus

Less than 3 months - - 27,630 88e 27,530 889 28,419

3-8 months - - 1,408 55 - 1,409 36 1,464

6 - 12 months - - 4,124 20 - 4,124 20 4,144

Over 12 months - - 500,426 20,192 5,07¢ 303 505,505 20,485 526,000
Total loans and interest '

receivables 517,398 15,771 586,380 22,536 5,219 303 1,108,997 38,610 1,147,607
Less: Allowance for

doubtful accounls - - {71,745) {15,849) (5,079) {303) (76,824) (15,952} {92,776)

Loans and interest

receibables - nel 517,398 15771 514,635 6,887 140 - 1,082,173 22858 1,054,831

' Prasented as a part of "Accrued investment income - net” in the statements of financial pasition.
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Consolidated and separate financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Bahl)

M December 2018

Policy loans Morlgage loans Other loans Tolal
R Interest Interast Imerest Interest
Cverdue periods Principal receivables™ Principal receivables!” Prircipal receivables™ Principal recejvabies™ Total

Not yet due 522,004 16,016 58,260 1,984 164 580,428 18,000 598,428
Past due

Less than 3 months - - 29,067 978 - - 29,087 978 30,045

3 - 6 months A - - 125 - - - 125 125

6 - 12 monihs - - 7.027 155 - - 7.027 155 7.182

Over 12 months 590,122 24,182 5,315 314 595,437 24,496 519,933
Total loans and interesl

receivables 522,004 16,016 684,801 27,298 5,479 314 1,212,084 43622 1,285,713
Less: Allowance for

doubltful accounts - - (80,8084) {17,775) (5,318) (314) (85,199) {18,088) {104,288)

Loans and interest .

receivables - net 522,004 16,018 &03,747 8,524 - 164 - 1,125 885 26 540 1,151,425

" Presented as a parl of "Accrued Investment intame - net* in the statements of financial position.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, mortgage loans were loans provided to agents,

employees and external individuals on which interest was charged at the rates between

6 to 19 percent per annum and 6 to 19 percent per annum, respectively. Collateral used to

secure such loans comprised land and buiidings.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, other loans were loans provided to employees and

agents, which were guaranteed by personal guarantees or motor vehicles and on which

interest was charged at the rates between 7 to 15 percent per annum and 7 to 15 percent

per annum, respectively.

12. Investment in a subsidiary

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, detail of investment in a subsidiary, as presented in the

seéparate financial statements, was as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Bahl)

Type of Gountry of Issued and paid-up Cartying value under
Company's name business incarporation share capital Shareholding percentage Cost equity method
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 |
. (%) (%)
Phillig Insurance Broker Nonife Thatland
Company Limited insurance
broker 5,000 5,000 99.88 99,88 4,994 4,894 4,256 4,915
Tolal investment
4,994 4,984 4,956 4,915

in a subsidiary

The Company recognised share of |oss from investment in a subsidiary in its separate

statements under the equity method, which was based on the subsidiary’s financial

statements, prepared by the management but not yet audited by its auditor.
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13. Premises and equipment

Cost
1 January 2018
Additions
Disposalsiwrite-off
Transfer in (6ut)
31 December 2018
Additions
Disposalsiwrite-off
Transfer in (out)
31 December 2019
Accumulated depreciation
1 January 2018
Depreciation for the year
Accumulated depregiation
on disposals/write-off
31 December 2018
Cepreciation for the year
Accumulated deprecialion
on disposalsfwrile-off
31 Decemnber 2019

Net book value
31 December 2018

31 December 2019

Depreciation for the year
2018

2019

Censolidated and separate financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Buildings and  Furniture, fixtures
building and office Assets Idle .
tand imprevements equipment Computers Vehicle in progress "assets Tolat
36,714 114,503 80,802 46,460 7,427 - 4,085 289,991
- 133,238 7,039 8,823 40,216 180,014
- - (9385) {118) - - - {1,051
- 38,186 2,730 - - (40,918) - -
36,714 285,925 69,636 £E167 7,427 - 4,085 458,954
- 797 2,204 1,668 - 23,720 - 28,388
- {444} (918} @ - - - {1,368)
- 20,635 3,085 - {23,720) -

36,714 306,913 74,009 56,826 7427 - 4,085 485,974
- 73,164 51,261 36,839 6767 - 1,100 168,131

- 27,002 4,862 4,501 269 - - 36,634
- - (929) (110) - - - (1,039)

- 100,166 55,194 41,230 7.036 - 1,100 204,726

- 30,292 5,307 5316 268 - - 41,183
- {343) (9186) (9) - - - (1.268)

- 130,115 59,585 48,537 7,304 - 1,100 244,641
36,714 185,759 14,442 13,937 391 - 2,985 254 228
' 38,714 176,798 14,424 10,289 123 - 2985 241,333
36,634

41,183

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain equipment items were fully depreciated but

have been still in use. The original costs, before deducting accumulated depreciation, of

those assets amounted to approximately Baht 168 million and Baht 99 million, respectively.
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14,

Intangible assets

Cost

1 January 2018

Additions

31 December 2018
Aaditions

Transfer in (out)

31 December 2019
Accumulated amortisation

1 January 2018
Amortisation for the year
31 December 2018
Amortisation for the year
31 December 2019

Net book value

31 December 2018

31 December 2019
Amortisation for the year

2018

2019

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and Separate financial statements

Computer software

Computer software  under development Total
22,497 481 22,978
15,460 - 15,460
37,957 481 38,438

2,407 - 2,407
481 (481) -
40,845 - 40,845
17,580 - 17,590
4,164 - 4,164
21,754 - 21,754
5,230 - 5,230
26,984 - 26,984
16,203 481 16,684
13,861 - 13,861
4,164

5,230

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain computer software was fully amortised but have

been still in use. The original costs, before deducting accumulated amortisation, of those

assets amounted to approximately Baht 15 miilion and Baht 13 million, respectively.
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15.

16.

Other assets

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, other assets consisted of the following items:

Consolidated financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December

31 December

2019 2018 2018 2018

Rental deposits 7,387 7,293 7,387 7,293
Other receivables 87,013 86,569 87,050 86,569
Withholding taxes 18,255 36,087 19,255 36,087 |
Receivables from sales of

investments - 1,994 - 1,994
Receivable from the Legal

Executive Department 4,444 4. 444 4,444 4,444 '
Others | 15,756 29,595 15,756 29,672
Total 133,855 165,982 133,892 166,059
Less: Allowance for doubtful

éccounts (93,231) (106,373) (93,231) (106,373)
Other assets - net 40,624 59,609 40,661 59,686

Insurance contract liabilities

Long-term insurance policy reserves
Loss reserves
Claims incutred and reported
Claims incurred but not yet reported
Premium reserves
U_nearned premium reserves
Unexpired rigk reserves
Unpaid policy benefits
Other insurance liabilities

Total

Consolidated and separate financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Insurance Insurance
contract Reinsurance contract Reinsurance
liabilities of liabilities Net liabilities of liabilities Net

8,679,969 - 8,679,869 7,405,511 - 7,405,511
170,289 - 170,289 26,452 - 26,452
20,554 - 20,554 3,400 3,400
360,591 (1,539) 359,052 126,881 (917} 125,964
30,472 2,182 32,654 - - -
42,115 - 42 115 39,532 - 39,532
459,565 - 459,565 419,546 - 419,546
8,763,555 643 9,764,198 8,021,322 (917) 8,020,405

1! Presented as part of “Other liabilities” in the staterents of financial position
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16.1 Long-term insurance policy reserves

Balances - beginning of the years

Insurance policy reserves increased for new
businesses and inforce policies

Insurance policy reserves released from death,
benefit paid, lapse and surrender

Change in insurance policy reserves as a result of
assumption changes

Changes in insurance policy reserves as a result of

experience adjustments

Balances - end of the years
16.2 Short-term insurance policy reserves

(@) Loss reserves

Balances - beginning of the years
Claims incurred in the current years
Changes in estiration and assumptions
Claims paid during the years

Balances - end of the years

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate

financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
7,405,511 7,212,182
1,139,842 750,047
(526,254) (420,914)
657,756 (136,617)
3,114 813
8,679,969 7,405,511

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consoclidated and separate

financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
29,852 21,975
516,395 | 175,852
(6,643) (10,500)
(348,761) (157,475)
190,843 29,852
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(b) Claims development table

Accident year/

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Reporting year Before 2012 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Totat
Loss estimates-
"+ End of the aceident year 63,169 53,130 49,183 45,122 48,266 81,953 143,288 168,373 480,575
- One year later 65,782 55,743 51,614 47,506 51,122 82,252 144,501 167,671
- Two years later 65,828 55,770 51,635 47,647 51,126 82,264 145,018
- Three yealrs later 65,842 55,774 51,640 47,538 51,132 82,282 '
- Four years later 85,842 55,780 51,631 47 541 51,135
- Five years later 65,850 55,815 51,631 47,547
- Six years later 65,850 55,782 31,833
- Seven years later 65,850 55,782
- Eight years later 65,852
Uttimate loss estimates 65,853 55,782 57,633 47,548 51,136 82,287 146,156 167,764 516,395 1,184,554
Cumnulative losses paid (65,852) (55,782) (51.631) {47,541) (51,132) {82.245)  (144516)  (167,552)  (327,460) (993,711}
Total loss reserves 1 . 2 7 4 42 1,640 212 188,935 190,843

(c) Unearned premium reserves

Balances - beginning of the years
Premium written during the years
Premium earned during the yeérs

Baiances - end of the years

(d) Unexpired risk reserves

Balances - beginning of the years
Estimated claims
Risk expired during the years

Balances - end of the years

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
126,881 100,926
788,807 277,365

(555,097) (251,410)
360,591 126,881

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separats

financial statements

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
119,916 91,872
852,761 253,222
(581,614) (225,178)
391,063 © 119,916

As at 31 December 2019, unexpired risk reserves were higher than unearned

premium reserves by Baht 30.5 million, which was already recognised in profit or loss.
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16.3 Significant assumptions

(a)

Long-term insurance policy reserves

The Company uses the Gross Premium Valuation (“GPV"} method to value total
obligated liabilities for long-term insurance contracts. The GPV method is an actuarial
valuation method, which determines the present value of cash flows expected to
receive from insurance premiums and expected to pay on benefits committed under
insurance policies, including related expenses expected to incurred in the future.
However, key assumptions used are based on the Company’s historical experiences
and the Insurance Industry’s historical experiences, the regulator's requirements,
forecasts of related expenses, and so on. Key assumptions used in such actuarial

estimation are summarised as below.

Mortality and morbidity rates

The Company sets mortality and morbidity rate assumptions with reference to the .
rates announced in the Thai Mortality Ordinary Table, the Thai Mortality Iﬁdustry Table
and the Thai Annuitant Table, which are also widely used in the business sector, as
required by the office of Insurance Commission, the Company's histarical experiences

and expert judgement of actuaries.

Lapse rates

The Company sets lapse rate assumptions with reference to its historical experiences,

separated by product types, lives of policies and expert judgement of actuaries.
Discount rates

The Company sets discount rate assumptions with reference to zero coupon

government bonds, which are in accordance with criteria laid down by the office of |
Insurance Commission in valuation of liabilities of life insurance companies and the
bond yields for each duration used will correspond to the durations of the expected

cash flows.

Operational expenses

The Company sets operating expense assumptions with reference to actual operating
expenses on in-force policies incurred in the past, trend of operating expenses in the -

future and expert judgement of actuaries.
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(b) IBNR loss reserves

The Company estimates IBNR loss reserves using the Chain Ladder method, which is
an international standard actuarial technique. The key assumptions used are claim
development rates, which are derived from historical latest 5-years claim experiences

available to the Company and expert judgement of actuaries.

16.4 Unpaid policy benefits

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

31 December

2019 2018
Death benefits 4,319 1,881
Maturity payments 21,209 22,365
Surrender 974 _ 479
Benefit payments under policies 1,339 1,740
Others 14,274 13,067
Total unpaid policy benefits 42,115 39,532

16.5 Other insurance liabilities

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

31 December

2018 2018
Deposits of the insured ' 441,070 " 405,184
Others : 18,495 14,362
Total other insurance liabilities 459,565 419,546
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17.

18.

Reinsurance payables

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had reinsurance payables classified by

type of liabilities as follows:

Outward premiumn payables

Total due to reinsurers

Employee benefit obligations

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consoclidated and separaie financial statements

31 December

2019 2018

5,844 5,109

5,844 5,108

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, employee benefit obligations were

presented as follows:

Employee benefit obligations at beginning of the years

Recognised in profit or loss:
Current service costs
Interest costs
Past service costs

Actuarial {gains) losses arose from:
Demographic assumption changes
Financial assumption changes

Experience adjustments

Total

Recognised in other comprehensive income or loss:

Actuarial (gains) losses arose from:
Demographic assumption changes
Financial assumption changes
Experience adjustments

Total
Less: Benefits paid during the years

Employee benefit obligations at end of the years

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018

38,765 39,053

4,271 3,360
1,310 835
11,928 -

86 -
(25) -
160 -

17,708 4,195

1,702 -
(397) -
2,961 -

4,266 -
(3,548) (4,483)

57,191 38,765
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company expected to pay Baht 7.3 million and Baht

5.5 million, respectively, on employee benefit obligations during the next 1 year period.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the weighted average payment durations of employee
benefit obligations were 11 years and 11 years, respectively.

Significant actuarial assumptions at the valuation dates were as follows:

Consolidated and separate financial statements

2019 2018
(% per annum) (% per annum)
Average discount rate 2.26 2.16
Future salary incremental rate 5.00 5.00
Staﬁ turnover rates (depending on
service years of each employee) 3.50 - 25.00 4.00 24,00

The impact of sensitivity analysis for significant actuarial assumptions on employee benefit

obligations as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 was summarised below:

{(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Increase Increase

(decrease) . (decrease)

in employee in employes

Change benefit Change in benefit

in assumptions obligations assumptions obligations

(% per annum}) (% per annum)

Discount rate +0.5% (1,611) +0.5% {1,409)
Discount rate -0.5% 1,715 - 0.5% 1,499
Future salary incremental rate +(0.5% 2,156 +(.5% 1,480
Future salary incremental rate -0.5% (1,322) -0.5% (1,413}
Turmover rate + 10.0%(" (1,163) + 10.0%M (1,477}
Turnover rate - 10.0%M 2,022 - 10.0%M 1.564

1 10% of the turnover rate used as assumption
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On 5 April 2019, The Labor Protection Act (No. 7) B.E. 2562 was announced in the Royal
Gazette. This stlpufates additional legal severance pay rates for employees who have
worked for an uninterrupted period of twenty years or more, with such employees entitled to
receive not less than 400 days’' compensation at the latest wage rate. The law is effective
from 5 May 2019. This change is considered a post-employment benefits plan amendment.
The Group's management considered to approve the change of the defined benefit plan to
conform to the new law and therefore incurred on additionat provision for employee benefit
of Baht 11.9 million. The Group already reflected the effect of the change by recognising
past service costs as expenses in the statement of income.

19. Deferred tax liabilities and income tax expenses
19.1 Deferred tax liabilities

Ae at 31 December 2019 and 2018, deferred tax liabilities consisted of tax -effects arose

from the following temporary difference items:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

Changes in deferred tax liabilities
reported in the statements of

comprehensive income for the

31 December years ended 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Deferred tax liabilities arose from:
Unrealised gains on available-for-
. sale investments 127,077 52,138 (74,939) 98,353
Unrealised gains on trading '
investments 1,835 - (1,835) -
Total deferred tax liabifities 128,912 52,138
Total changes (76,774) 98,353
Recognition of changes in '
- Statement of income (1,835) -
- Statements of comprehensive
incoms (74,839) 98,353
Total changes . 7 (76,774) ‘ 98,353
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19.2

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had tax-deductible temporary differences
and unused tax losses for which the Company did not record deferred tax assets since the
management has already assessed and believes that it will not have sufficient taxable profit
in the future to utilise such deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses before

they expire. Those tax-deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses items are as

bellows:
{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Allowance for impairment 24,412 62,436 24,412 62,436
Employee benefit obligations 57,191 38,765 57,191 38,765
Loss reserves 190,843 29,853 190,843 29,853 -
Premium reserves 48,481 10,623 48,481 10,623
Unexpired risk reserves 32,654 - 32,654 -
Unrealised (gains) losses on
trading investments - 5,649 - 5,649 .
Tax losses brought forward no
longer than five fiscal years 1,474,616 772,814 1,474,657 772,761
Tota 1,828,197 920,140 1,828,238 920,087

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were made up as
follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
For the years ended 31 December For the years ended 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Current income taxes:
. Corporate income tax for the years - - - -
Deferred income taxes:
Relating to arigination and reversal of
temporary differences (1,835) - {1,835) -
- Income tax expenses recognized in
profit or loss (1,835} - (1.835) -
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Reconciliations between income tax expenses and the product of accounting loss for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the applicable tax rate were as follows:

{Unit: Thausand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
For the years ended 31 December For the years ended 31 December
2019 2018 2019 2018
Accounting loss before income tax .
expenses ' (1,211,255) (12,068) (1,211,255) (12,068}
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Amount of income taxes at the applicable
- tax rate 242,251 2,414 242 251 2414
Net tax effect on revenues or expenses .
that are not taxable or not deductible in
determining taxable profits 8,901 25,545 8,901 25,545
Temporary differences, which are not .
recognised as deferred tax assels (40,398) (12,262) (40,398) (12,262)
Deferred income taxes on losses for the
years, which are expected not to be
able to utilise (212,5889) {15,697) {212,589) (15,697)
Income tax expenses recognised in
profit or loss ' (1,835) N (1.835) -

The amounts of income taxes relating to each component of other comprehensive income
(loss) for years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consclidated and separate

financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Income taxes relating to:
(Gains} on revaluation of availabie-for-sale investments (57.736) 89,396
Gains (losses) on sales of available-for-sale investments during the
years iransferred to be recognised in profit or loss (17,203) : 8,957
Income taxes reported in other comprehensive income or loss ' (74,939) 98,353
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20. QOther liabilities

21.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, other liabilities consisted of the following items:

(Unit: Thousand Baht) -

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements | statements
31 December 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
Accrued commission and brokerage expenses 151,772 116,690 151,772 116,690
Deposits from agents 62,752 45974 62,752 45,974
Accrued operating expenses 56,913 55,244 56,770 55,244
Payables on purchases of investments 1,135 - 1,135 -
Others 16,784 15,727 16,784 15,727
Total other liabilities 289,356 233,635 289,213 233,635

Share capital

21.1 Registered share capital

By the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders held on 25
April 2018, it is resolved to approve the decrease in the registered share capital of the .
Company from Baht 3,034,375,000 to Baht 2,834,375,000 by the decrease of uhissued 32
million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or total of Baht 200 million. In
addition, it is resolved to approve the increase in the registered share capital of the
Company from Baht 2,834,375,000 to Baht 4,000,000,000 by the increase of 186.50 million .
ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or a total of Baht 1,165,625,000 million.
The Company registered the decrease and increase in the registered share capital with the
Ministry of Commerce on 18 June 2018.

By‘/ the resolution of the Extracrdinary Generai Meeting No.1/2019 of the Company’s '
shareholders held on 10 October 2019 it is resolved to approve the decrease in the registered
share capital of the Company from Baht 4,000,000,000 to Baht 3,634,375,000 by the
decrease of unissued 58.50 million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or total
of Baht 365,625,000. In addition, it is resolved to approve the increase in the registered share |
capital of the Company from Baht 3,634,375,000 to Baht 6,000,000,000 by the increase of
378.50 million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or a total of Baht
2,365,635,000. The Company registered the decrease and increase in the registered share _
capital with the Ministry of Commerce on 31 October 2019 and 6 November 2019,
respectively.
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21.2 Issued and paid-up share capital

By the resolution.of the Meeting No. 6/2018 of the Company's Board of Directors held on
27 November 2018, it is resolved to approve the issuance of the Company’s additional 48
million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or a total of Baht 300 million to
ekisting shareholc_iers in the ratio of 1 existing share to 0.1058434 new ordinary shares for
the purpose of meeting the Capital Adequacy Requirement as required by the Office of
Insurance Commission. On 18 December 2018, the Company received payments for such
additional ordinary shares and registered the issued and paid-up share capital with the
Mi‘nistry of Commerce on 28 December 2018.

By the resolution of the Meeting No. 1/2019 of the Company’s Board of Directors held on
25 February 2019, it is resolved to approve the issuance of the Company’s additional 32
million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or a total of Baht 200 million to
existing shareholders at the ratio of 1 existing share to 0.0638086 new ordinary shares for
the purpose of meeting the Capital Adequacy Requirement as required by the Office of
Insurance Commission. On 25 March 2019, the Company received payments for such
additional ordinary shares and registered the issued and paid-up share capital with the
Ministry of Commerce on 29 March 2019.

By the resolution of the Meeting No. 21/2019 of the Executives Commitiee held on
4 September 2019, it is resolved to approve the issuance of the Company’s additionat .
48 million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each. or a total of Baht 500 million to
existing shareholders at the ratio of 1 existing share to 0.0899719 new ordinary shares for
the purpose of meeting the Capital Adequacy Requirement as required by the Office of
Insurance Commission. On 20 September 2019, the Company received payments for such .
additional ordinary shares and registered the issued and paid-up share capital with the
Ministry of Commerce on 30 September 2019,

By the resolution of the Meeting No. 6/2019 of the Company’s Board of Directors held on _
8 November 2019, it is resolved to approve the issuance of the Company's additional 64
million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or a total of Baht 400 million to
existing shareholders at the ratio of 1 existing share to 0.1160602 new ordinary shares for
the purpose of meeting the Capital Adequacy Requirement as required by the Office of _
Insurance Commission. On 25 November 2019, the Company received payments for such
additional ordinary shares and registered the issued and paid-up share capital with the

Ministry of Commerce on 29 November 2019.
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21.3

22,

By the resolution of the Meeting No. 31/2019 of the Executives Committee held on
4 December 2019, it is resolved to approve the issuance of the Company’s additional
40 million ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each, or a total of Baht 250 million to
existing shareholders at the ratio of 1 existing share to 0.0619675 new ordinary shares for
the purpose of meeting the Capital Adequacy Requirement as required by the Office of
Insurance Commission. On 18 December 2019, the Company received payments for such
additional ordinary shares and registered the issued and paid-up share capital with the -
Ministry of Commerce on 24 December 2019,

Reconciliation of registered, issued and paid-up share capital

Reconciliation of the registered, issued and paid-up share capital of the Company during '
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

{(Unit: Baht)
For the year ended For the year ended
Par value 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
per share  No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Registered share capital:
Balance at beginning of the years 6.25 640,000,600 4,000,000,000 485,500,000 3,034,375,000
Registered the .
increased/decreased share
capital during the years 6.25 320,000,000 2,000,000,000 154,500,000 965,625,000
Balance as at 31 December 6.25 860,000,000 6,000,000,000 640,000,000 4,000,000,000
Issued and paid-up share capital: '
Balance at beginning of the years 6.25 501,500,000 3,134,375,000 453,500,000 2,834,375,000
Issued additional shares during
_the years 6.25 184,000,000 1,150,000,000 48,000,000 300,000,000
Balance atend of the years 6.25 685,500,000 4,284,375,000 501 ,500,000' 3,134,375,000

Share subscription receivable

On 8 September 2004, the Company had issued and paid-up share capital of Baht 2,100 -
millton, consisting of 21,000,000 ordinary shares at a par value of Baht 100 each. The
Company did not receive payment of Baht 72,218,175 for 722,182 ordinary shares held by
a shareholder. Such unsettled amount has been recorded as “Share subscription
receivable”, which has been presented as a deduction item in owners’ equity since the -

beginning.
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In the year 2009, the Company decreased its issued and paid-up share cahital for three
times by ways of reducing a par value per share and combining 4 existing shares into 1 new
share. These caused the issued and paid-up share capital to be decreased from Baht 2,200
million to Baht 34.375 million by decreasing the share capital of Baht 2,165.625 million and .
decreasing the share premium of Baht 172.33 million to offset against deficit of Baht
2,337.955 million. After such capital decreases, the Company’s issued and paid-up share
capital was Baht 34.375 million, consisting of 5,500,000 ordinary shares at a par value of
Baht 6.25 each. The number of ordinary shares held by the shareholder, who still owes to -
the Company on' the unsettled shares as mentioned above, is also reduced to 180,545
shares at a par value of Baht 6.25 each after such capital decreases whereby the
outstanding unsettled balance from such shareholder still remains at Baht 72,218.175.
Legai action was taken against this shareholder whereby the outcome of the case was -
finalised and the executing officer already ceized the unsettled shares for further auction.

The parent company won the bid and already paid for shares.

Reconciliations of the issued and paid-up share capital as described above are detailed as

below.
Par value Number of Issued and paid-  Share subscription
Year Description per share shares up share capital receivable
(Baht) (Shares) {Thousand Baht) (Thousand Baht)
Year 2004 100 21,000,000 2,100,000 : 72,218
Year 2008 Issuance of additional ordinary
shares 100 1,000,000 100,000
100 22,000,000 2,200,000 72,218
No.1 - Year 2009 Decrease share capital by
' reductien of a par value .
per share - (1,650,000) {54,163)
25 22,000,000 550,000 18,055
No.2 - Year 2009 Decrease share capital by ‘
reduction of a par value
per share - (412,500} (13,541)
. 6.25 22,000,000 137,500 ' 4,514
No.3 - Year 2009 Decrease share capital by
combining 4 existing shares
into 1 new share (16,500,000) (103,125) (3,386)
8.25 5,500,000 34,375 1,128
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On 26 June 2015, the Civil Court had a judgment to order F&V Alliance Company Limited to
pay to the Company for a total of Baht 95,689,080 including interest determined until the -
suing date. Howéver, according to the 2015 financial position information of F&V Alliance
Company Limited, it showed a significant amount of liabilities and a capital deficit. It is
therefore unable to pay to the Company according to the Court’s judgement and entered
into a compromise agreement with the Company allowing the Company to proceed for the
capital decrease: As for the capital decrease process, the Company determined 2
approaches, that is to get an approval from the OIC to reduce the 3,626,571 registered and
paid-up shares in the Shareholders Registrar or to sell these shares at auction through the
Legai Execution Department.

On 27 April 2017, it was resolved in the 2017 Annual General Meeting of the Company's

shareholders to approve the decrease in the registered share capital by 3,626,571 shares. _

amounting to Baht 22,666,068.75 held by a shareholder, namely F&V Alliance Company -
Limited for the Share Certificate No. 1096644 to No. 4723214 because F&V Alliance
Company Limited did not pay such shares.

On 30 May 2017, the Company sent the' letter to the OIC requesting for approval of the
capital decrease. However, the Company was informed that the OIC cannot abproved such
capital decrease due to the fact that the Life Insurance Act did not have any clauses
specifying that the Registrar can approve the capital decrease due to such reason.
Therefore, the Company will proceed to sell those shares through auction, another .
approach as approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareﬁolders.

On 8 November 2017, the Company requested the executing officer to ceize assets of F&V
Alliance Company Limited to settle the balance according to the Court’s judgement dated
26 June 2015,

On 7 March 2018, the executing officer sent a letter to the Company informing that they
already ceized the unsettled shares of the Company held by F&V Alliance Company
Limited.

On 26 June 2019, the executing officer sold shares through auction. Phillip Life Company
Limited, the parent company, won the bid at the price of Baht 13,420,000 and alreédy
placed the deposit of Baht 1,000,000 with the Bangkok Civil Litigation Office 2 whereby it is .
required to settle the price within 11 October 2019.
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23.

24,

25,

On 25 September 2019, Philip Life Company Limited, the parent company, made a payment

for the remaining share price to the Bangkok Civil Litigation Office 2.

On 4 March 2020, the Company already received such share price payment from the

Bangkok Civil Litigation Office 2.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is

required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net income after

deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), unit the reserve reaches 10 percent

of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Net investment revenues

Investment revenues:
Interest income
Dividend income

Less: Investment expenses

Net investment revenues

Operating expenses

Personnel expenses

Premises and equipment expenses

Taxes and duties

Bad debt and doubtful accounts
(reversal)

ther operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Consolidated

financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

For the years ended 31 Decemnber

2019 2018 2019 2018
275,444 236,323 275425 236,323
99,803 152,901 99,803 152,901
{6,943) (8,309) (6,943) (8,309)
368,304 380,915 368,285 380,915

Consolidated

financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate

financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

For the years ended 31 December

2018 2018 2019 2018
210,926 180,174 210,926 180,174
97,662 89,660 97,662 89,660
9,930 8,015 9,930 8,015
(11,016) (51,124) (11.016) (51,124)
86,785 75,798 86,724 75,746
394,287 302,523 394,226 302,471
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26. Expenses by nature

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate

financial statements financial statements

For the years ended 31 December  For the years ended 31 December '

2019 2018 2019 2018

Reserves for long-term insurance

contracts increased from prior year 1,274,458 193,330 1,274,458 - 193,330
Unexpirad risk reserves increased

from prior year 32,654 - 32,654 -
Beneiit payments under life policies 028,645 677,816 928,645 877,816
Cléims 391,481 117,318 391,481 - 117,319
Comrmission and brokerages expenses 595,756 412,876 595,722 412,876
Employee expenses 228,660 192,599 228,660 192,598
Other underwriting expenses 23,338 14,286 23,338 14,286
Premises and equipment expenses 101,046 92,184 101,046 . 92,184
Bad debt and doubtful accounts

(reversal) {11,016) (51,124) (11,016) {51,124)
Others 75,701 134,720 75,640 134,668

Total expenses 3,640,723 1,784,006 3,640,628 . 1,783,954
.27. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance
with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The Company contributes to the fund monthly at the |
rate of 5 - 10 percent of basic salary and employees contribute 5 ~ 15 percent of their basic
salary. The fund, which is managed by CIMB-Principal Asset Management Company
Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. _
During the years. ended 2019 and 2018, the Company contributed Baht 10.5 million and
Baht 8.8 million, respectively, to the fund.
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28. Components of other comprehensive income (loss)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Amounts Amounts
before Tax Amounts before Tax Amounts
taxes expenses  net of taxes taxes expenses net of taxes
Gains {losses) on
revatuation of
available-for-sale
investments 374,692 (74,939) 289,753 (491,767) 98,353 (393,414)
Actuarial losses on the
defined benefit plan (4,266) - {(4,266) - - -
Total 370,426 {74,939) 295,487 (481,787) 98,353 (393.414)

29. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing loss for the years (excluding other -

comprehensive income (loss)) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the years.

Basic earnings per share for the years

determined as follows:

Consolidated

financial statements

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 were

Separate

financial statements

For the years ended

31 December

For the years ended

31 December

Loss for the years (Thousand Baht)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(Thousand shares)

Basis earning per share

- Loss for the years (Baht/share)

2019 2018 2019 2018
(1,213,090) (12,068)  (1,213,090)  (12,068)
544,585 501,319 544,585 501,319
(2.23) (0.02) (2:23) (0.02)
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30.

30.1

30.2

Related party transactions

Type of relationship

The relationship - between the Company and its related parties, who have significant

business transactions with the Company, are summarised below.

Name of related parties

Type of relationship

Phillip Life Company Limited

Phillip Insurance Broker Company Limited

Phillip Securities (Thailand) Public
Company Limited

Key management personnel

Parent company
Subsidiary

Having common directors

Persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly,
including any director {(whether executive

or otherwise) of the Company.

Significant business transactions with related parties

The Company had significant business transactions with its related parties. Such

transactions, which have been concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon in

the ordinary course of business between the Company and those parties, were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consoclidated and separate

financial statements

For the years ended 31 December Pricing policy
2019 2018
Related parties
Income
Premium written 193 - Confraciual rates

Expenses

Securities management fee

Commission expenses

5,424

1,682

7,486 Similar to those charged to
general customers of a
related company

276 The agreed-upon rates
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30.3 Outstanding balances with related parties

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the outstanding balances between the Company and

its related parties were as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements financial statements
31 December 31 December
2019 2018 2019 ' 2018
Subsidiary
Assets
Rgceivables from related parties - - 38 38
Related company
Assets
Premium receivables 193 - 193 -
Liabilities
Aécrued commission expenses 231 - 231 : -
Accrued securities ménagement fee 1,116 1,825 1,116 1,825

30.4 Directors’ and key management’s remunerations

The Company had employee benefit expenses incurred in relation to its directors and key

management as below.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits 3,843 3,039
Long-term empioyee benefits 133 265
Total 3,978 3,304
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31.

32.

Securities placed with the Life Assurance Registrar and commercial bank

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had the following securities placed with -
the Registrar in accordance with the Life Assurance Act.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value

Placed with the Life

Assurance Registrar:
As securities
Government bonds 20,465 20,952 20,145 20,460
As life insurance

reserves
Government and state

enterprise bonds 1,511,259 1,681,147 1,535,240 1,683,120

Private debentures 404,920 463,201 355,559 392,985
Total 1,918,179 2,144,348 1,890,798 2,076,105

Contributions to the Life Insurance Fund

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate '

financial statements

For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018
Accumulated contributions at beginning of the years 12,158 10,724
Contributions during the years 2,348 1,434
Accumulated contributions at end of the years 14,508 12,158
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33.

34.

34.1

Operating lease commitments

The Company has entered into several operating lease agreements in respect of the lease
of office building. The terms of the agreements are generally between 1 year and 3 years.
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, future minimum lease payments required under these
non-cancellable operating leases contracts were as follows.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

31 December

Payable within 2019 2018
Within 1 year 28,587 27,121
1to 3 years 60,757 17,772
Total 89,344 44,893

Life insurance company’s risk

The Company recognises the importance of risk management within the organization. Risk
Management is an important tool in organisational management according to the Risk
Management Policy. It is required under the Notification of the Office of Insurance
Commission that the Company’s Risk Management Policy must be identified and reviewed
by the Risk Management Committee and approved by the Company's Board of Directors.
The Company proceeds according to the Risk Management Process, which covers key risk

area as follows:
Life insurance risk

Life insurance risk is a risk that is caused by the volatility of frequency, severity and timing of
occurrence that is deviated from assumptions used in pricing, calculation of reserves and

underwriting consideration.

‘The Company sets up standard underwriting guidelines standard for each product plan, age
and gender for selection of life insurance target group, taking into consideration various
factors such as mortality rates, persistency rates, and soon. The Company assesses the
adequacy of insurance reserves and capital adequacy ratio to meet the regulatory
requirements in order to be assured that the Company is able to accept the risks that may

arise in the future.
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In addition, The Company has reinsurance policies to diversify those risks to the reinsurers

for huge damage or disaster events.

The sensitivity analysis on the insurance contract liabilities is a tool to help analysing impact

from volatility of assumptions used in calculation of insurance contract liabilities both before

and after reinsurance. The risks may be caused by the frequency and severity of damages
and loss adjustment expenses are not as expected.

(a) The sensitivity analysis on long-term insurance policy reserves

Mortality rate
Lapse rate
Discount rate

Related expenses

Mortality rate
Lapse rate
Discount rate

Related expenses

Consolidated and separate financial statements

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

31 December 2019

Increase
{decrease) in
long-term
insurance policy

reserves - both

Increase
(decrease) in
long-term .

insurance policy

Increase reserves - both Increase
Assumptions gross and net of (decrease} in Assumptions gross and net of (decrease) in
increase reinsurance owners' equity decrease " reinsurance owners' equity
+ 15% 68,661 (68,861} - 15% {72,348) 72,348
+ 20% (167,107) 167,107 - 20% 200,704 (200,704)
+ 0.5% (614,972) 614,912 -0.5% 696,241 (696,241)
+5% 58,874 (58,874) - 5% (58,874) 58,874
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consclidated and separate financial statsments
31 December 2018
Increase Increase
(decrease) in {decrease) in
long-term long-term
insurance insurance
reserves - both Increase reserves - both Increase
Assumptions gross and net of {decrease) in Assumptions aross and net of (decrease} in )
increase reinsurance owners' equity decrease reinsurance owners' equity
+15% 71,380 (71,380) -15% (75,618) 75,618
+ 20% (58,703) 59,703 - 20% 654,181 (64,161)
*0.5% (411,816) 411,816 -0.5% 460,524 (480,524)
+ 5% 50,113 {50,113) -5% {50,113) 50,113
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(b) The sensitivity analysis on loss reserves

(Unit: Thousand Baht) _

Consolidated and separéte financial statements

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease} in (decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
Loss Develoment Factor (LDF) loss reserves owners' equity loss reserves owners’ equity
+10% 106,548 (106,548) 69,395 (69,395)

- 10% (7.718) 7,716 {1,299) 1,299
34.2 Concentrations of life insurance risk

The Company manages concentration risk by distributing a variety of life insurance products
in- order to meet customers’ needs of each customer segment. Circumstances that may .

affect the concentration of its products include:

1. Changes in market interest rate and the significant down trend of interests rates on
deposits may have a negative impact on the Company's endowment and whole-life ‘

products.

2. Changes in mortality rate, which has an upward trend of average longevity age, may

have a negative impact on the Company’s pension products.
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As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, concentration risk on insurance contract liabilities,
classified by types of insurance products, were shown below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Gross Net Gross Net
long-term long-term long-term long-term
insurance insurance insurance _ insurance

' resefves Reinsurance reserves resetves Reinsurance reserves
Endowment 4,757 585 - 4,757,585 4,257,202 - 4,257 202
Whole life 3,214,566 - 3,214,566 2,655,117 - 2855117 .
Term insurance
& mortgage 8,986 - 8,986 8,963 - 8,963
Annuity 59,125 - 59,125 5777 - 5777
Reduce paid-up 324,452 - 324,452 252,258 - 292,258
Extended term .
insurance 169,963 - 169,963 144,597 - 144,597
Long term rider 145,292 - 145,292 41,597 - 41,597
Total 8,679,069 - 8,679,969 7,405,511 - 7,405,511
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consclidated and separate financial statements '
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
‘Gross loss Net loss Gross loss | Net loss
reserves Reinsurance reserves reserves Reinsurance reserves
Personal accident 2,059 - 2,059 1,781 - 1,781
Accidental rider : 2917 - 2,917 620 - - 620
Critical illness
rider 911 - 911 - - -
Health rider 84,471 - 84,471 21,979 - 21,979 _
Group insurance . 100,485 - 100,485 5,472 - 5,472
Total 190,843 - 180,843 29,852 - 29,852
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34.3 Insurance contract assets and liabilities
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, insurance contract assets and liabilities, classified by
remaining maturity pericds as from the reporting dates, were summarised below:

{(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Within 1 year 1-5years Over 5 years Total

Insurance contract assets
Premiurmn receivables - net 130,946 - - ' 130,946
Reinsurance assets 1,539 - - 1,538
Reinsurance receivables f21¢3¢] - - 899
Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities

Long-term insurance policy

reserves() 96,055 1,681,317 11,196,312 12,973,684

Loss reserves 95,461 5,024 - 100,485

Reinsurance payables 5844 - - . 5,844

() Estimated timing of the net cash outflows

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Within 1 year 1-5years Qver 5 years Total

Insurance confract assets
Premium receivables - net 94,899 - - 94899
Reinsurance assets 917 - - 917
Reinsurance receivables 361 - - 361
Insurance contract liabiiities - -
Insurance contract liabilities

Long-term insurance policy

reservest 197,138 1,974,078 9,269,256 11,440,473

Loss reserves 28,360 1,492 - ‘ 29,852

Reinsurance payables 5,109 - - 5,109

M Estimated timing of the net cash outflows
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35.

35.1

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 107

“Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash

equivalents, investments in securities, and loans. The financial risks associated with these

financial instruments and how they are managed is described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk occurs when the counter party is unable to honor an agreement made with
the company including a chance that the credit rating of the counter party may be
adjusted credit down.

Key areas that the Company is exposed to credit risk are cash positions, premium
receivables, policy loans, mortgaged loans and investments in debt securities.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit evaiuations are performed on all policyholders, borrowers
and debt securities on an ongoing basis. At the reporting date, there were no .
significant credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the

carrying value of each financial asset in the statements of financial position.

Concentrations of the credit risk with respect to loans and premium receivables are low |
due to the farge number of borrowers and customers in the Company's customer base
and their dispersion across different industries and geographic regions in Thailand.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of these assets as

presented in the statements of financial position.

The Compa.ny expects no risk on policy ioans since the sum that the Company has
lent to the insured parties is less than the cash values of their policies with the
Company and the maximum value of the risk arising from mortgage loans is the
amount of the loan less the value at which the Company is able to derive from the

mortgaged assets.
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{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk that cceurs from the fluctuations in interest rates due

to changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages this risk by performing sensitivity test in the condition of

market interest rate’ s changing to show the impact on the changing in Capital -
Adeguacy Ratio under the changing in market interest rate and will find out the solution

to control that impact.

The Company’s exposure to mterest rate risk relates primarily to its deposns at

financial institutions, investments in securities and loans.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, significant financial assets classified by type of
interest rates are summarised in the table below, with those financial assets that carry
fixed interes; rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if
this occurs before the maturity date.

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

31 December 2019

Fixed interest rates

Remaining periods to repricing dates ar

maturity dates

Within Floating No )
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years interest rate interest Total Interest rate
(%pa)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 349,197 16,566 365,763 0.05-0.48
investments in securities
Equity securities _ - . - - 4,059,333 4,059,333 -
Government and state
enterprise securities 61,656 697,649 1,710,467 - - 2,469,772 1.54 -4.98
Private sector debt
securities 203,853 1,278,083 2,138,678 - - 3,620,614 JBB-5.25
Policy loans 517,398 - - - - '517.398 4,75 - 8.00
Mortgage and cther loans - net 51,177 179,335 77,621 - 206,642 514775 6.00-19.00
Total 834,084 2,155087 3,925,766 345,197 4 282,541 11,547 655

M Non-performing |eans
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

31 December 2018

Fixed interest rates

Remaining periods {e repricing dates or

maturity dates

Within Ffoating No
1 year 1-5years Qver 5 years interest rate interest Total Interest rate
(% p.a)
Einancial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 208,855 27,334 236,189 0.05-066
Investments in securities
Equity securities - - - - 3,744,820 3,744 820 -
.Government and state
enterprise securities . 235,292 588,957 1,177,658 - - 2,011,905 3.58 - 6.40
Private sector debt
securittes 30,451 1,184,946 1,097,360 - - 2,312,757 368 - 5.50
Policy loans 522,004 - - - - 522,004 5.00-10.00
Mortgage and other loans - net 100,997 181,589 35,027 - 286,268t 603,881  6.00- 19.00
Total . 838,744 1,965,482 2,310,043 208,855 4,058,422 9,431,556

™ Non-performing loans

{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Fixed interest rates

Remaining periods to repricing dates or

maturity dates
Within Floating No
1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years interest rate interest Total Interest rate
(% pa)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 344,055 16,568 .360'621 0.05-0.48
Investments in securities
Equity securities - - - - 4,059,333 4,050,333 -
Government and state
enterprise securities 61,656 697 649 1,710,467 - - 2,488,772 1.54 - 488
Private sector debt )
securities - 203,853 1,278,083 2,138,678 - - 3,620,614 3.68-5.25
Pclicy loans 517,398 - - - - 517,308 4.75 -8.00
Mertgage and other loans - net 51,177 179,335 77,621 - 206,642 514,776 600-19.00
Total 534,084 2,155,067 3,926,766 344,055 4,282,541 11,542,513

% Non-performing loans
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{(Unit: Thousand 8aht)
Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Fixed interest rates

Remaining periods to repricing dates or
maturity dates

Within Floating No
1 year 1-5years Over 5 years interest rate interest Total Interest rate
(% p.a.)
Financial Asgsets
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 203,855 27,335 231,180 0.05-0.66
fnvestments in securities
Equity securities - - - - 3,744,820 3,744,820 -
.Government and state
enterprise securities 235,292 398,957 1,177,656 - - 2,011,905 3.58-6.40
Private sector debt
securities 30,451 1,184,846 1,097 360 - - 2,312,757 3.68-5.50
Poticy loans 522,004 - - - - 522,004 5.00-10.00
Mortgage and other loans - net 100,997 181,589 35,027 - 288,268 803,881  .00-19.00
Total . 888,744 1,085 492 2,310,043 203,855 4,058,423 0,428,557

™ Nor~performing loans
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to liquidate financial assets
and/or procure sufficient funds to discharge obligations in a timely manner or able to
make payment at a cost higher than acceptable level, resulting in a financial loss. The
Company manage liquidity risk by maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents
appropriate to their operations to reduce the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

In addition, the Company prepares risk monitoring reports on Key Risk Indicators

(KRIs) and Capital Adequacy Ratio required by regulation.
{Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial staternents

Outstanding batances of financial instruments as at 31 December 2019

Less than & months -
At call & months 1 year 1- 3years Over 3 years Urspecified Tolal
Fiqancial Assets
Cash ang cash equivalents 865,763 . - . . . 365,763
Investments in securities
Equity securities 4,056 066 - - - - 3,267 4,059,333
Government and state
enlerprise securities - - 61,656 275,139 2,132,977 - 2468772
Private enterprise debt ‘
securities ' - 30,210 173,843 590,863 2,825,898 - 3,620,614
Policy loans 517,398 - - - - - 517,398
Mortgage and other Ioans -
net 303,285 80 4,442 71,938 135,020 - 514,775
Total 5,242,512 30,300 239,741 937,940 5,003,895 3,267 11,547 B55
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Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securities .
Equity securities
Gavernment and state
enterprise securities
Private enterprise debt
secUrties
Policy loans
Mortgage and other loans -

net

Total

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securities
Equity securities
Government and state
enterprise securities
Private enterprise debt I
securities
Policy loans
Mortgage and other loans -
net

Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in securities
‘Equity securities
Government and state
enterprise securities
Private enterprise debt
securities
Policy loans
Mdrtgage and other loans -

net

Total

Consolidated financial statements

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Outstanding balances of financial instruments as at 31 December 2018

Less than 8 months -
At call 6 months 1 year 1-3years QOver 3 years Unspecified Total
236,189 - - - - - 236,18.9
3,743,106 - - - - 1,714 3,744,820
- - 235,292 241,355 1,535,218 - 2,011,905
30,451 558,395 1,723,911 - 2,312,757
522,004 - - - - - 522,004
341,303 6,880 410 116,873 138,315 - 603,881
4,842,602 6,880 266,153 916,763 3,307 444 1,714 9,431,556
{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements
Outstanding balances of financial instruments as at 31 December 2019
Less than B months -
At call 6 months 1 year 1- 3 years Over 3 years Unspecified Total .
360,621 - - - - - 360,621
4,058,088 - - - - 3,267 4,059,333
- - 61,656 275139 2,132,977 - 2,469,772
- 30,210 173,643 590,863 2,825,898 - 3,620,614
517,308 - - - - 517,388
303,285 a0 4,442 71,238 135,020 - 514;775
5,237,370 30,300 239,741 837,940 5,093,885 3,267 11,542,513
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Separate financial statements
Quistanding balances of financial instruments as at 31 December 2018
Less than & months -
At call & months 1 year 1-3years Over 3 years Unspecified Total
231,190 - - - - - 231,780
3,743,108 - - - - 1,714 3,744,820
- - 235,292 241,395 1,535,218 - 2,011,905
30,451 558,305 1,723,911 - 2;31 2,757
522,004 - - - - - 522,004
341,302 6,880 410 118,073 138,316 - 603,881
4,837,602 6,880 266,163 916,763 3,397,445 1,714 9,426 557

80



(d) Foreign currency risk

The Company's significant exposure to foreign currency risk is in respect of its

investments in equity securities and unit trusts which are denominated in foreign

currencies.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the balances of financial assets de_nominated in

foreign currencies, which were not hedged for foreign exchange risk, were

summarised below.

Consolidated and separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Available-for-salés
investments
Equity securities

Investment unit

Available-for-sales
investments
Equity securities

Investment unit

Exchange
Fareign currency Cost Fair valus rate
(Thousand (Thousand {Thousand (Thousand (Baht per
units) Baht) units} Baht) unit)
Singapore dollar 16,767 433,837 21,627 477,000 22.06
Singapore dollar 2,481 54,711 2,482 54,737 22.08
Consolidated and separate financial statements
31 December 2018
Exchange
Foreign currency Cost Fair value rate
(Thousand {Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Baht per
units) Baht) units} Baht) unit)
Singapore dollar 17,964 466,103 21,667 507,370 23.42
Singapore dollar 47 1,124 47 1,112 23.42
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35.2 Fair values of financial instruments
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had assets and liabilities that were measured
or disclosed at fair value using different levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

31 December 2019

Fair value - Car-rying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total value

Assets measured at fair values
Trading investments

Equity securities - 2,218,335 - 2218335 2,218,335 -
Available-for-sale investments |

Equity securities 1,837,731 - - 1,837,731 1,837,731

Debt securities - 6,090,386 - 6,090,386 6,080,386
Assets for which fair values were disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 365,763 - - 365,763 365,763
General investment - - 6,410 6,410 3,287
Policy loans - - 605,183 605,183 517,388

Mortgaged and cther loans - net - - 626,573 626,573 514,775

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial staternents

31 December 2018

Fair value Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total value

Assets measured at fair values
Trading investments

Equity securities - 1,484,547 - 1,484,547 1,484 547
Available-for-sale investments .

Equity securities 2,258,552 - - 2,258,552 2,258,552

Debt securities 4,324,662 4,324,662 4,324,662

_ Warrants 7 - - 7 7

Assets for which fair yalues were disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents 236,189 - - 236,189 236,18%
General investment - - 4,914 4,914 1,714
Policy loans - - 577,696 577,696 522,004
Mortgaged and other loans - net - - 688,682 688,682 603,881
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Assets measured at fair values
Trading investments
Equity securities
A;railable-for-sale investments
Equity securities
Debt securities
Assets for which fair values were disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
General investment
Investments in subsidiary
Policy loans

Mortgaged and other loans - net

Assets measured at fair values
Trading investments
Equity securities
Available-for-sale investments
Equity securities
Debt securities
Warrants
Assets for which fair values were disclosed
Cash and cash equivalents
General investment
Investments in subsidiary
P.olicy loans

Mortgaged and other loans - net

(Unii: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2019

Fair value Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total value
- 2,218,335 - 2,218,335 2,218,335
1,837,731 - - 1,837,731 1,837,731
- 6,090,386 - 6,000,386 6,090,386
360,821 - - 360,621 360,621
- - 6,410 6,410 3,267
- - 4,956 4,956 4,956
- - 605,183 605,183 517,398
- - 626,573 626,573

514,775

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

31 December 2018

Fair value Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total value
- 1484547 - 1484547  1.4B4,547 -
2,258,552 . - 2,258,552 2,258,552
4,324,662 4,324,662  4,324.562
7 - - 7
231,190 . - 231,190 231,190
- . 4914 4,914 1,714
. - 4,915 4,915 4,915
- . 577,696 577,696 522,004
. - 688,682 688,682 603,881

7
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36.

During the years, there were no transfers within the fair value hierarchy.

The methods and assumptions used by the Group in estimating the fair value of financial -

instruments are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The fair values of financial assets having short-term maturity, which are cash and
short-term deposits at financial institutes, are estimated to approximate their carrying -

values.

Investments in debts securities are determined for fair values using the yield curve as
announced by the Thai Bond Market Association.

Investment in equity securities are determined for fair values according to market
prices or using the net asset value per unit as announced by the fund managers. In
case of non-marketable equity securities, the fair value is generally determined using
generally accepted pricing model or approximated to their net book values if the fair

value cannot be reliably estimated.

The fair value of policy loans is estimated from the present value of cash flows

discounted by zero coupon bonds.

The fair value of mortgaged loans is estimated from the present value of cash flows

discounted by an average retail iending rates of 5 commercial banks.

Cépital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to ensure that they have

appropriate financial structure to preserve the Group’s ability to continue their businesses

as a going concern and to maintain capital in accordance with Declarations of the Office of -

Insurance Commission.
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37.

-38.

39.

Reclassification:

The Company reclassified certain line items for more appropriate comparison with current
years financial statements. However, such reclassifications had no effect to previously

reported loss for the year or owners’ equity. The reclassification was as follows:

{Unit: Thousand Baht)
Consolidated and separate

financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

As previously

As reclassified reported
Statements of income
Revenues '
Net investment revenues 380,914 371,483
Fair value losses {22,220) (12,789)
| 358,694 . 358,694

Events after the reporting period

On 11 March 2020, the Meeting No. 8/2020 of the Executives Committee resolved to
approve the issuance of the Company's additional 80 million ordinary shares at a par value |
of Baht 6.25 each, or a total of Baht 500 million to existing shareholders at the ratio of
1 existing share to 0.1167031 new ordinary shares for the purpose of meeting the Capital
Adequacy Requirement as required by the Office of Insurance Commission.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of directors
on 23 March 2020.
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